

BY-LAWS

ARTICLE I. Name

The name of the organization shall be the Governor's Council on Workforce Investment.

ARTICLE II. Authority

By authority of 29 U.S.C. § 3111, these by-laws are issued by the Governor. In accordance with Section 101 of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA), 29 U.S.C. § 3111, and 2019 Wisconsin Executive Order 6 the Governor's Council on Workforce Investment shall serve as the duly-designated state workforce board for the State of Wisconsin.

ARTICLE III. Organization

3.1 Membership

Pursuant to 2019 [Wisconsin Executive Order #6](#), 29 U.S.C. § 3111, and 20 C.F.R part 679.110, Council members are appointed by the Governor, and must include:

(i) A majority of representatives of businesses or organizations in the State who:

(A) Are the owner or chief executive officer for the business or organization, or is an executive with the business or organization with optimum policy-making or hiring authority, and also may be members of a Local WDB as described in WIOA sec. 107(b)(2)(A)(i);

(B) Represent businesses, or organizations that represent businesses described in paragraph (b)(3)(i) of this section, that, at a minimum, provide employment and training opportunities that include high-quality, work-relevant training and development in in-demand industry sectors or occupations in the State; and

(C) Are appointed from a list of potential members nominated by State business organizations and business trade associations; and

(D) At a minimum, one member representing small businesses as defined by the U.S. Small Business Administration.

(ii) Not less than 20 percent who are representatives of the workforce within the State, which:

(A) Must include two or more representatives of labor organizations nominated by State labor federations;

(B) Must include one representative who must be a member of a labor organization or training director from a joint labor-management registered apprenticeship program, or, if no such joint program exists in the State, a member of a labor organization or training director who is a representative of an registered apprenticeship program;

(C) May include one or more representatives of community-based organizations that have demonstrated experience and expertise in addressing the employment, training, or education needs of individuals with barriers to employment, including organizations that serve veterans or provide or support competitive, integrated employment for individuals with disabilities; and

(D) May include one or more representatives of organizations that have demonstrated experience and expertise in addressing the employment, training, or education needs of eligible youth, including representatives of organizations that serve out-of-school youth.

BY-LAWS

(iii) The balance of the members:

(A) Must include representatives of the Government including:

(1) The lead State officials with primary responsibility for the following core programs -

(i) The adult, dislocated worker, and youth programs authorized under title I of WIOA and the Wagner-Peyser Act;

(ii) The Adult Education and Family Literacy Act (AEFLA) program authorized under title II of WIOA; and

(iii) The State Vocational Rehabilitation (VR) program authorized under the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended by title IV of WIOA.

(iv) Where the lead official represents more than one core program, that official must ensure adequate representation of the needs of all core programs under his or her jurisdiction.

(2) Two or more chief elected officials (collectively representing both cities and counties, where appropriate).

(B) May include other appropriate representatives and officials designated by the Governor, such as, but not limited to, State agency officials responsible for one-stop partner programs, economic development or juvenile justice programs in the State, individuals who represent an Indian tribe or tribal organization as defined in WIOA sec. 166(b), and State agency officials responsible for education programs in the State, including chief executive officers of community colleges and other institutions of higher education.

The members of the State board shall represent diverse geographic areas of the State, including urban, rural, and suburban areas, in accordance with 29 U.S.C. § 3111(b)(1)(2).

In summary, the balance of CWI membership shall be comprised of:

- (1) The Governor or his/her designee;
- (2) Representatives of businesses or organizations that represent businesses in the state;
- (3) Representatives of employees, including representatives of labor organizations;
- (4) Representatives of government, including state officials responsible for the WIOA's core programs and chief elected officials;
- (5) A member from each party of each chamber of the state legislature, appointed by the presiding officer from their respective chamber; and
- (6) Any other members as the Governor may appoint.

3.2 Appointment

(1) Nominations

- (a) Individuals interested in being nominated to serve on the Council are encouraged to apply online at: or send in their applications via email to GOVAppointments@wisconsin.gov
- (b) The Governor's Office shall internally review all applications upon receipt before sending to the Governor for official approval. Upon approval by the Governor, these applicants shall be officially appointed to serve on the Council.

BY-LAWS

- (c) The Governor's Office shall direct the Department of Workforce Development staff to the Council to, in collaboration with the DWD Secretary's Office, notify the Governor's Office of any member vacancy to ensure a prompt nomination to fill that open position.

(2) Council Members

- (a) The members of the Council are appointed by the Governor, except legislative representatives who are appointed by the presiding officer of their respective chamber and serve at the pleasure of the Governor.
- (b) The Governor shall select the CWI Chair from among the business representatives serving on the Council.

(3) Designees

Any member who wishes to identify a designee must convey the name and any other requested information in writing at least 30 days in advance of any Council meeting to the Council Executive Director and Council Chair for approval. To be considered for approval, all suggested designees must be otherwise eligible to serve as Council members under 29 U.S.C. § 3111 and 20 C.F.R. 679.110 (d)(4): namely, if the designee is a business representative, he or she must have optimum policy-making hiring authority, and other designees must have demonstrated experience and expertise and optimum policy-making authority. Only an approved designee may participate fully, count towards a member's attendance and CWI quorum, and vote at Council meetings.

- (a) The Governor may be represented by a designee at any meeting of the Governor's Council on Workforce Investment and that designee's attendance shall constitute attendance by the Governor for quorum purposes. A person attending a board meeting as a designee of the Governor is authorized to vote on behalf of the Governor.
- (b) Council members may select an official designee to attend Council meetings they are unable to attend. All designees must be otherwise eligible to serve as Council members under 29 U.S.C. § 3111 and 20 C.F.R. 679.110 (d)(4) and must abide by all conflict of interest provisions required of Council members as a condition of their designee status.

(4) Terms

- (a) Members are appointed to serve at the pleasure of the Governor.

(5) Termination and Resignation

The Governor may terminate the appointment of any member, other than those who are legislative appointments or are state or university officials who serve by virtue of their position, at his pleasure.

- (a) Any member may resign from the Council by submitting a letter of resignation to the Governor and Council Executive Director. The resignation shall become effective on the date specified in the resignation letter.
- (b) Council members, who due to job change or other reasons no longer represent the sector from which they were appointed, may continue to serve until their replacement is appointed unless continued membership is determined by the Council Executive Director to violate 29 U.S.C. § 3111, 20 C.F.R. part 679.

BY-LAWS

- (c) Elected officials who are no longer serving in the elected office they were appointed to represent, shall submit their resignation effective immediately to the Governor's Office in writing upon dismissal.
- (d) Members who are not business representatives and serve by virtue of their position shall submit their resignation in writing to the Governor's Office if they are no longer serving in the position through which they were appointed to the Council.

3.3 Voting

Only Council members appointed under Section 3.2(1) of these by-laws, or individuals officially designated under Section 3.2(2) of these by-laws, are voting members of the Council. Each member of the Council shall have one vote. From time to time, the Governor may also appoint ex-officio members to the Council. These members shall not have voting privileges nor count towards the CWI quorum unless such voting authority is specifically conveyed by the Governor.

3.4 Conflict of Interest

- (1) Council members are state public officials as defined by ss. 19.42, Wis. Stats., and are subject to Wis. Stat §§ 19.45 and 19.46, relating to code of ethics and conflict of interest. As such, among other prohibitions, members shall not:
 - (a) use his or her public position to obtain financial gain or anything of substantial value for the private benefit of himself or herself or his or her immediate family, or for an organization with which he or she is associated.
 - (b) Take any official action substantially affecting a matter in which the official, a member of his or her immediate family, or an organization with which the official is associated has a substantial financial interest; and
 - (c) Use his or her office or position in a way that produces or assists in the production of a substantial benefit, direct or indirect, for the official, one or more members of the official's immediate family either separately or together, or an organization with which the official is associated.
- (2) Pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 3111, a member of the Council may not vote on a matter under consideration regarding the provision of services by the member or by an entity that the member represents or that would provide direct financial benefit to the member of the immediate family of the member. In addition, a member of the Council may not engage in any other activity determined by the Governor to constitute a conflict of interest as specified in the State plan.

3.5 Staffing of the State Council

Pursuant to Wisconsin 2019 Executive Order #6, the Wisconsin Department of Workforce Development (DWD) shall provide staff and administrative support for the Council.

ARTICLE IV. Officers and Executive Director

4.1 Council Chair

BY-LAWS

The Chair of the Council shall be appointed by the Governor, from among those members who are business representatives, to serve at his/her pleasure in accordance with 29 U.S.C. § 3111(c).

4.2 Vice Chair

The Vice Chair of the Council shall be appointed by the Governor, from among the members, to serve at his or her pleasure. The Vice Chair shall, in the absence of the Chair, have all the authority and responsibilities of the Chair.

4.3 Council Executive Director

The Secretary of the Department of Workforce Development shall serve as the Council's Executive Director.

ARTICLE V. Meetings

5.1 Frequency

The Council shall meet at least four times a year or as otherwise determined by the CWI Chair. Meetings shall be scheduled at the call of the Chair.

5.2 Notice

- (1) Notice of meetings of the Council, along with an agenda of items for consideration at such meeting, shall be provided to all members not less than twenty-four hours in advance of the meeting, but generally, at least seven days prior notice should be provided. Mailing by e-mail or postal mail to the member's registered address shall be deemed adequate notice.
- (2) Public notice as required under Subchapter V of Chapter 19 of the Wisconsin Statutes (also known as the Wisconsin Open Meetings Law) and 29 U.S.C. §3111(g) shall be given prior to each meeting.

5.3 Presiding Officer

The Chair shall preside at all meetings of the Council and shall be responsible for the management of the business of the Governor's Council on Workforce Investment. If the Chair is absent, the Vice Chair shall preside over the meeting. If both the Chair and the Vice Chair are absent, the Council Executive Director shall preside over the meeting.

5.4 Agenda

The Chair, in consultation with the Council Executive Director, DWD staff support, and the Executive Committee, shall determine the agenda for each Council meeting.

5.5 Quorum

A majority of Council members, or their official designees, shall constitute a quorum for the purpose of conducting official business of the Council.

5.6 Technology

At the Chair's discretion and should the meeting host be able to provide it, a conference line may be provided at all Council meetings and may be provided at working group meetings by request. Web-based meetings may also be used as deemed appropriate by the Chair.

ARTICLE VI. Committees, Working Groups

BY-LAWS

6.1 Executive Committee

(1) Membership

The Executive Committee shall be comprised of the Chair, Vice Chair, Executive Director, and Chairs of the working groups. The Chair may, at his/her pleasure, designate additional Council members to serve on the committee.

(2) Purpose

The Executive Committee shall provide overall direction to Council activities. The Executive Committee shall also take action on matters when time does not allow issues to be addressed at a regularly scheduled Council meeting. A majority vote of the Executive Committee is required for all such actions. All actions of the Executive Committee shall be reviewed by the full Board at the next regularly scheduled meeting.

6.2 Working Groups

(1) Purpose

The Council shall, under the guidance of the Council Chair, form working groups on an as-needed basis to formalize a structure for council members and stakeholders in Wisconsin's workforce and talent development system to actively participate in the maintenance, support and refinement of the system's activities. The CWI currently has three standing working groups – **Employment Training Infrastructure Working Group**, the **Growing Workforce Opportunities Working Group**, and the **WIOA Compliance and Resource Alignment Working Group** – that will build off of the work done in their [2018-2022 Strategic Plan](#), centering around the 5 Strategic Priority Areas that are listed below:

- 1) Increase Educational Attainment and make it Affordable for all Wisconsin Residents
- 2) Increase Net Migration to Wisconsin
- 3) Increase awareness and expand Worker Training Programs, Internships, and Apprenticeships
- 4) Serve Under-Represented Populations
- 5) Improve Access and Understanding of Workforce Investment Assets

These working groups shall consist of a majority of Council members-and shall report to the Council on their activities, mission, and deliverables. Reports shall be made via recommendations for action and approval during formal working group report outs at Council meetings, except when the working group acts on behalf of the Council based on prior authority granted by the Council for a specific purpose. The chairs of the working groups shall establish appropriate rules for management of the working group's business. Working groups and their purpose shall be reviewed by the Council at least once but not more than twice a year to ensure that the working group is continuing to progress along their purpose.

(2) Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Working Group

The purpose of the WIOA Working Group shall be to assist the Governor in carrying out his or her statutory requirements in compliance with Federal WIOA guidelines, as listed in 20 CFR § 679.130, and shall have responsibility for the Strategic Priority 4 of the 2018-2022 CWI Strategic

BY-LAWS

Plan. At least four members of the WIOA Committee shall be state officials responsible for the WIOA core programs.

(3) Growing Workforce Opportunities Working Group

This group will focus on Strategic Priorities II and V and will address removing barriers; improving economic infrastructure (e.g., child care, transportation, health care), and attracting and retaining workers in Wisconsin.

(4) Employment Training Infrastructure Working Group

This group will focus on Priorities I and III and will cover issues including but not limited to: apprenticeship (RAs, YAs); WI Fast Forward; Internships; Career Pathways; industry specific training needs (e.g., healthcare, child care, IT).

(5) Working Group Membership and Meetings

- (a) The working groups shall elect their own leadership (chair, vice chair) by simple vote. Working groups shall consist of a majority of council members as determined by the CWI Chair.
- (b) The working group chairs shall convene meetings 4 times per year in advance of Council meetings and as needed upon the call of the working group chairs in coordination with the CWI Chair.
- (c) All working group members may participate fully and vote on any matters before standing Council working groups. Members of a working group who are not Council members nor ex-officio members shall likewise be subject to the conflict of interest provisions of Section 3.4 of these by-laws as a condition of their membership on the working group and shall not have voting privileges.

6.3 Ad hoc and Special Committees

The Council Chair, in consultation with the Executive Committee, may establish *ad hoc* or special committees, workgroups, or task forces to assist the Council in carrying out its responsibilities. The scope, duration, and membership of the committee shall be determined by the Council Chair at the time of the appointment. At least one member of an ad hoc or special committee, workgroup, or task force must be a Council member. The balance of non-Council members shall be appointed by the Council Chair. All appointed members of an ad hoc committee established under these by-laws may participate fully and may vote on any matters before the committee. Members of an ad hoc committee who are not Council members shall still be subject to the conflict of interest provisions of Section 3.4 as a condition of their membership on the committee.

ARTICLE VII. Reimbursement of Expenses

Travel expenses reported by Council members, other than state, technical college, and University employees (who would be reimbursed by the agency which pays his or her salary) to attend meetings of the Council or its committees or other meetings approved by the Council shall be reimbursed in accordance with the State travel reimbursement policy Wis. Stat. § 15.09(6) and State of Wisconsin Travel Regulations, which allows for members to be reimbursed for their actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their duties. This would allow for:

BY-LAWS

- (a) Meals at the reimbursable state rate of \$8 for breakfast, \$10 for lunch, and \$20 for dinner;
- (b) Hotels at the reimbursable state rate of \$82/night except in Milwaukee, Waukesha, and Racine counties, which allow for \$90/night, and
- (c) Mileage at the reimbursable state rate of \$0.51/mile

Members shall submit their travel reimbursement request in writing to CWIADMIN@dwd.wisconsin.gov within 10 business days of the charges incurred for assistance in obtaining and filing the necessary forms and paperwork for reimbursement. Members requesting a hotel or lodging reimbursement must make their email request at least 10 business days in advance of the meeting, to ensure room at the host hotel. Members shall receive their reimbursement within 30 days upon submission of their request.

ARTICLE VIII. Amendment of By-laws

The Council, by majority vote, may recommend to the Governor changes to these by-laws. The Governor may amend the by-laws at any time.

ARTICLE IX. External Inquiries

Members of the Council shall refer all legal, legislative, and media inquiries and contacts to the Department of Workforce Development at CWIADMIN@dwd.wisconsin.gov.